

Wireless Modem

User Manual



【4AI + 2DO】 MA01 -XACX0420

All rights to interpret and modify this manual belong to Chengdu Ebyte Electronic Technology Co., Ltd.

Contents

Disclaimer	
1.Product introduction	4
Features	
2.Quick start	5
2.1 Use preparation	5
2.2 Equipment wiring	5
2.2.1 Power wiring	
2.2.2 Communication Wiring RS485	
2.2.3 Overall wiring diagram	6
2.3 Software settings	
2.3.1 Device connection	7
2.3.2 Device testing	8
3.Product overview	9
3.1 Product specifications	9
3.2 Technical parameters	
3.3 Port Description	12
3.4 Dimensions	
3.5 How to install	
4.Product functions	14
4.1 Analog input AI	
4.1.1 Analog input AI description	
4.1.2 Analog input AI filter parameters	14
4.1.3 Analog input AI sampling range	15
4.1.4 Analog input AI original value, engineering measure value	
4.1.5 Analog input AI calibration	
4.2 Switch output DO	16
4.2.1 Switch output DO description	
4.2.2 Switch output DO mode settings	17
4.3 Device address	17
4.3.1 Device address	17
4.3.2 Hardware address (dial switch).	
4.3.3 Software address (offset address).	19
5.Port wiring	20
5.1 Analog input AI port wiring	
5.1.1 Two-wire sensor wiring	20
5.1.2 Three-wire sensor wiring	20
5.1.3 Four-wire sensor wiring	
5.2 Switch output DO port wiring	21
5.2.1 Output direct control load (small power device within 1kW)	21
5.2.2 Output Control Contactor (Contactor Control High Power 220V Device).	22

5.2.3 Output Control Contactor (Contactor Control High Power 380V Device)	
6. The use of software	
6.1 Software installation	
6.2 Introduction to software features	24
6.2.1 IO demo interface	24
6.2.2 Basic setup interface	27
6.2.3 Advanced Settings Interface	
6.3 Device status query	
6.4 Device status control	
7.Modbus uses	
7.1 Register List	
7.2 List of AI-related registers	
7.3 Instruction format (partial).	
7.3.1 Read DO output coil status	
7.3.2 Read Hold Register	
7.3.3 Write a single hold register	
7.3.4 Write multiple hold registers	
7.3.5 Write a single DO coil status	
7.3.6 Write multiple DO coil states	
7. 3. 7 Read the input register	
Revised history	
About us	

Disclaimer

EBYTE reserves all rights to this document and the information contained herein. Products, names, logos and designs described herein may in whole or in part be subject to intellectual property rights. Reproduction, use, modification or disclosure to third parties of this document or any part thereof without the express permission of EBYTE is strictly prohibited.

The information contained herein is provided "as is" and EBYTE assumes no liability for the use of the information. No warranty, either express or implied, is given, including but not limited, with respect to the accuracy, correctness, reliability and fitness for a particular purpose of the information. This document may be revised by EBYTE at any time. For most recent documents, visit www.ebyte.com

1.Product introduction

The MA01-XACX0420 is a support for the acquisition of four sensor analog inputs (AI), converted to serial port (RS485) data transfer to configuration software or PLC. The serial I/O networking module (also known as "Remote IO") for remote acquisition control function is realized by controlling the 2 relay switch output (DO) by sending instructions from the serial port.

Features

- Support for modbus RTU protocols;
- Support for all types of configuration software / PLC / touch screen;
- RS485 Acquisition Control IO;
- DC 8to28V power supply;
- 4 analog input AI(0 to 20mA/4 to 20mA);
- 2 switch output DO(relay);
- Switch output(DO)supports level mode, pulse mode;
- Input acquisition port isolation protection;
- Communication Baud Rate 1200to115200(default 9600), supports custom settings;
- Support for 1to247 substations,5-bit dial switch can be set 1to31 address code, greater than 31 can be set by software.
- Supports installation of guide and positioning hole.

2.Quick start

If there is a problem during use, click on the official website link: https://www.ebyte.com/product-class.aspx

2.1 Use preparation

Serial I/O networked devices ("IO devices") are required to prepare computers, converters, power supplies, screwdrivers and other related accessories before use. Here's how it works:

Serial	Devices	Quantity
number		
1	IO devices	1
2	USB re-serial converter	1
3	Configure the tool software	1
4	Computer	1
5	Power adapter(12V/1A).	1
6	Screwdriver (one word SL 2).	1
7	Signal generator (or sensor)	1

Table 2-1-1 Preparation List

2.2 Equipment wiring

2.2.1 Power wiring

Power supply, powered by DC 8to28V, or DC 12V or 24V.



Figure 2-2-1 Power wiring diagram

2.2.2 Communication Wiring RS485



Figure 2-2-2 Communication RS485 Wiring Diagram

2.2.3 Overall wiring diagram

- (1) After power is on on the device, the power LED(POWER) is on and the power supply to the device is ok.
 - (2) Analog input AI wiring, as shown by connecting the signal generator to the analog input AI port.
 - (3) Switch output DO wiring, as shown by connecting the load to the switch output DO port.



Figure 2-2-3 Overall wiring diagram

2.3 Software settings

2.3.1 Device connection



Figure 2-3-1 Software Interface

How to do this:

(1) Open the serial port, find the corresponding device port number, Baud rate default 9600,click "Open serial port."



Figure 2-3-2 Opens the serial port

(2) In the device window, click "Search device" and the log window on the right starts refreshing the search information. After the device section of the device window shows the connected device, click the "Stop Search" menu. Then select the device click, the connection is successful.

会中文	Ne	etwork Co	ontrol	About		Hide LC) DG										
Device									Seri	al port o	onfigurat	ion				LOG	
Number		model	-	address	v	ersion	Num	1	P	coaro			00	Class	· Surial	11 03 07 D0 00 07 06 15	^
1	IIA	01-AXCX40	40	2		V1.3	select	ion 1	rort	Cumo	× 1	aud	UU V	CTOS	e Serrai	->T [16:03:06:337] 12 03 07 D0 00 07 06 26	
	-													-		->T [16:03:06:540]	
Devi	ice i	infor	mati	on di	spla	ved	Sea	arch	Data	/check/st	op 8	¥.	None	~ 1	~	->T [16:03:06:739]	
					opto			-								14 03 07 D0 00 07 06 40	
IO demo }	asic set	ttings ad	lvanced s	ettings						Refi	esh all	Aut	-Refresh	Cycl	e 2 ×500ms	15 03 07 D0 00 07 07 91	
DI						CI	1CK	on								->T [16:03:07:136] 16:03:07:10:00:07:07:42	
-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	0	-	-	-	-	0	->T [16:03:07:335]	
	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	->T [16:03:07:534]	
-						-									-	18 03 07 D0 00 07 06 8C	
DI-1	DI-2	DI-3	DI-4	DI-5	D1-6	DI- 7	DI-S	DI-9	DI-10	DI-11	DI-12	DI-13	DI-14	DI-15	DI-16	->T [16:03:07:733] 19 03 07 D0 00 07 07 5D	
																->T [16:03:07:933]	
DO																->T [16:03:08:133]	
																1B 03 07 D0 00 07 06 BF	

Figure 2-3-3 Connecting devices

2.3.2 Device testing



Figure 2-3-4 Device Testing



Figure 2-3-5 Actual test results

3.Product overview

3.1 Product specifications

			1			
Product model	specification	The switch quantity is entered DI	The analog input AI	Switch volume output DO	RS485	RS232
MA01-AXCX4020	401-200	4 way		2 way	٠	×
MA02-AXCX4020	4DI+2DO	4 way	_	2 way	×	•
MA01-XACX0420			4 way	2 way	•	×
MA02-XACX0420	4AI+2DO		4 way	2 way	×	•
MA01-AACX2220	2DI+2AI+2D	2 way	2 way	2 way	٠	×
MA02-AACX2220	О	2 way	2 way	2 way	×	•
MA01-AXCX4040	4DI - 4DO	4 way	_	4 way	٠	×
MA02-AXCX4040	4DI+4DO	4 way	_	4 way	×	٠
MA01-XACX0440		_	4 way	4 way	٠	×
MA02-XACX0440	4AI+4DO	_	4 way	4 way	×	٠
MA01-AACX2240	2DI+2AI+4D	2 way	2 way	4 way	٠	×
MA02-AACX2240	О	2 way	2 way	4 way	×	•
MA01-XXCX0080	9 T 11			8 way	•	×
MA02-XXCX0080	8111	_	_	8 way	×	٠

Table 3-1-1 Product Specifications

3.2 Technical parameters

category	name	parameter
	Operating voltage	DC 8 to 28V
nowar annulu	Operating current	50mA @12V
power supply	The power supply	Green LED indication
	Communication	R\$485
	interface	K340J
	haud rate	1200 to 115200 hps (default 9600 hps)
	The data bit	8 (Fixed)
	Check bit	No checks, parity parity (default no checks)
Serial	Stop bit	1 (Fixed)
	Communication	Modbus PTU protocol
	protocol	Nodous Ki o protocor
	The device	1 to 247(default address 32.Software1 bardware 31)
	address	1 to 24/(default address 52.50ftware1, hardware 51).
	The number of AI	4 way
	roads	
	Collection range	0~20mA / 4~20mA
	resolution	12 hits
	Acquisition	3%
	accuracy	5700
AI input	The acquisition	10 Hz
	frequency	
	Acquisition	Single-ended input
	characteristics	
	Enter the	100Ω
	impedance	
	The number of	2 way
	DO roads	
	The DO output	Type C relay (normally open and normally closed)
	type	
DO output	DO output mode	Level mode, pulse mode
	Relay contact	30V/10A☆250V/10A
	capacity	
	The output	Red LED indication
	indicates	
	Product size	80 mm x 50 mm x 30mm (length x width x height)
other	Product weight	$80g \pm 5g$
	Working	-40 to 85 degrees C, 5% to 95% RH (no condensation)

Table 3-2-1 Technical Parameters



temperature and										
humidity										
Store temperature	-60	to	125	degrees	С,	5%	to	95%	RH	(no
and humidity	cond	lens	ation)							
How to install it	Insta	allati	ion of	guide rail	and	locati	ng h	ole		

3.3 Port Description



Figure 3-3-1 Interface Diagram Table 3-3-1 Port Feature Table

numbering	Pins	illustrate	remark
1	VCC	Power supply	It is recommended that RVV 2 x
2	GND	Ground -	0.75 wire
3	A/TX	RS485 corresponds to A	It is recommended that RVSP 3 x
4	B/RX	RS485 corresponds to B	0.5 wire
5	AI1	Analog input channel 1	
6	AI2	Simulate input channel 2	It is recommended that RVV 2 x
7	AI3	Analog input channel 3	0.5 wire
8	AI4	Analog input channel 4	
9	DO1	Switch output channel 1	Relays have normal open and
10	DO2	Switch output channel 2	normal closed ends

3.4 Dimensions



Figure 3-4-1 Dimensions

3.5 How to install

The equipment is installed with guide rail and positioning hole.



Chart 3-5-1 Guide rail installation



Chart 3-5-2 Position hole installation

4.Product functions

4.1 Analog input AI

4.1.1 Analog input AI description

Analog input AI measures current signals with acquisition ranges from 0to20mA or 4to20mA, with 3-bitaccuracy and 12-bit resolution. With single-ended input, sampling frequency 10Hzand input impedance of 100Ω .



Figure 4-1-1 simulates an INPUT AI interface

4.1.2 Analog input AI filter parameters

The filter parameters for the AI channel can be set with a valid value of 1to16and a default of 6.

concentrate:

(1) Ai channel filtering parameters are all AI channels share a filter parameter. The larger the filter parameters, the stronger the AI sampling anti-jamming capability, but at the same time has delay.

(2) The address of the AI channel filter parameter is 0x04B0 and the register type is the hold register. Function code 0x06, 0x10. When AI filter parameters are written, if the parameter values written are not within the range of 1 to 16,

the closest values are automatically taken to write, such as write filter parameters of 0, then the device takes 1 as the filter parameters, and Modbus does not return error instructions.

4.1.3 Analog input AI sampling range

Set the sampling range for all AI channels with valid values of 1 and 0 (default 0).

0: represents 0 to 20mA

1: Represents 4 to 20mA

- (1) The AI sampling range is shared by all channels, and when the AI channel sampling range is configured forsampling from 4to20mA, the engineered value of the channel is converted to 0 if the current signal is below 4mA. There is no conversion limit for signals greater than20mA, but no more than 25mA (more than 25mA there is a risk of equipment damage).
- (2) The AI channel sampling range parameter address is0x 04B2, register type is hold register, function code 0x06,0x10. When the AI channel sampling range parameter is written, if the parameter value is not within the range of 0to1, the closest value is automatically written, such as the write sample range parameter is 2,then the devicetakes 1 as the sampling range parameter, and MDOBUS does not return an error instruction.

4.1.4 Analog input AI original value, engineering measure value

There are two ways to read the current signal size collected by the device:

Read the original AI value and calculate the input current based on the input impedance.
 The original VALUE register address for AI is 0x0000to0x0003,the register type is the input register, and the read function code is 0x04. The value returned by this method is 2 bytes for a channel, and the numbers read range from 0to4095. The current size is calculated by 0to4095 for 0to25mA.
 The register type is discrete input register and the read function code is 0x04. namely

current =
$$\frac{\text{original value}}{4095} \times 25 \text{ (mA)}$$

(2) Read the AI engineering measure and convert directly to get the input current. The AI engineering value register address is 0x0064to0x0067, the register type is the input register, and the read function code is 0x04. This method returns a value of 2 bytes for 1 channel and reads a value of 0to25000. The current size is calculated by 0to25000 for 0to25mA. That is

$$current = \frac{Engineering quantity}{1000} (mA)$$

4.1.5 Analog input AI calibration

When the AI measurement current is read with a large error, it can be calibrated by setting the high and low calibration registers for each channel.

Each CHANNEL has its own high (low) point calibration register with high-point calibration register addresses of 0x0190to0x0193, and low calibration registeraddresses of 0x0258to0x025C. Register type is hold register with function codes of 0x06,0x10.

The calibration method can enter a precise current signal for the AI channel, and the write value is calibrated. For example, if the device is calibrated for the AIx channel, the actual input current is 20mA, at which point the original AI value of the AIx channel is read and the original value is written to the high calibration register of the AI channel. The general low calibration can default to 0 not set.

Note: This function is calibrated and is used only when the error is large. It is not recommended in general.

4.2 Switch output DO

4.2.1 Switch output DO description

Switch output DOwith level mode, pulse mode, follow mode (follow DIonly). With the Type C relay output (normally on and normally closed), the single output supports a maximum load (contact capacity) of 30V/10A or 250V/10A.

Each DO output is designed with an output indicator (red LED indication) indicating that the output port is off. When the LED is on, it means that the relay is sucked (normally on, normally closed and disconnected); When the LED is off, the relay is not sucked (normally open, normally closed).





Figure 4-2-1 Switch output DO interface

4.2.2 Switch output DO mode settings

(1) level mode

Depending on the level set by the user, the switching characteristics of the level mode are similar to those of the self-locking switch.

(2)pulse mode

When the switch output DO is on, the switch output DO switches off automatically after the set pulse width time (in ms) is maintained. Pulse width settings range from 50to65535(default 50).

(3) Follow the mode

After the user sets the follow mode, set the following input after. The switch output DO side is consistent with the DI input.

Note: Multiple switch output DO ends can be set to follow one DI input, not one switch output DO side to follow multiple DI inputs.

4.3 Device address

4.3.1 Device address

Device address composition: Hardware address and software offset address



Figure 4-3-1 Device Address

The device address defaultsto: 32(hardware address 31 plus software address 1 - device address 32). Device address settings range:1to247.

Hardware address: Implemented by dial switch(5-bit) dial setting (factory default is 31).

Software address: Implemented by the configuration tool software setting Offset Address (factory default is 1). Example:

If the hardware address is set to 5and the software address is set to 113, the device addressis 118.

4.3.2 Hardware address (dial switch).



Figure 4-3-2 Hardware Address (Dial Switch)

Hardware address: The dial switch switches different hardware addresses, and binary represents a 5-digit dial switch. The "5" direction indicates the low and the "1" direction indicates the high. Hardware address range adjustable range 0 to 31.

Hardware Address Dial Settings Description:

Example 1: Set the hardware address, binary encoding.









Example 3: Set hardware address 31, binary encoding.





Figure 4-3-5 Hardware Address 31

Hardware address, can be customized according to the actual situation, the setting method as shown in the above example.

If multiple devices are required to connect to a single RS485 bus, they can hang on up to 32 devices (just set up a hardware address) via a hardware address.

If you need more than 32 devices to connect to a single RS485 bus, you need to set up a software address (offset address) to connect up to 247 devices to a single bus.

After you change the address, you need to power down restart before the new address set is effective.

Note: The following 3 specifications of products, dial switch in the product housing body, if the dial switch needs to be opened shell and then set.

【2DI+2AI+2DO】 【4AI+2DO】 【4DI+2DO】

4.3.3 Software address (offset address).

Software address: Users can make different settings depending on the scene. The software address setting range is 1 to 24(device address: 1 to 247), and the software address defaults to 1.

Changing the software address is done through the configuration tool software, as shown in the figure:

IO demo basic settings	advanced settings	Software ad	ldress (Offset	address)		
Device settings						
Device name 123456789	901234 Offset addr	118	Read	Save	Restart	Factory

Figure 4-3-7 Software Address (Offset Address)

5.Port wiring

5.1 Analog input AI port wiring

5.1.1 Two-wire sensor wiring



Figure 5-1-1 Two-wire sensor wiring diagram

5.1.2 Three-wire sensor wiring



Figure 5-1-2 Three-wire sensor wiring diagram

5.1.3 Four-wire sensor wiring



Figure 5-1-3 Four-wire sensor wiring diagram

- 5.2 Switch output DO port wiring
- 5.2.1 Output direct control load (small power device within 1kW).



Figure 5-2-1 Output Direct Control Load Wiring Diagram

5.2.2 Output Control Contactor (Contactor Control High Power 220V Device).



Figure 5-2-2 Output Control Contactor Wiring Diagram

Note: The figure above takes the contactor coil voltage AC 220V as an example, the coil voltage may be different from contactor.

5.2.3 Output Control Contactor (Contactor Control High Power 380V Device).



Figure 5-2-3 Output Control Contactor Wiring Diagram

Note: The figure above takes the contactor coil voltage AC 220V as an example, the coil voltage may be different from contactor.

6.The use of software

6.1 Software installation

The configuration tool software is driver-free and is ready to use by double-clicking directly on the .exe file open.



Figure 6-1-1 Software Installation File

EI 亿佰特IO模块配置	置测试工具 V1.3	3								- 🗆 ×
中文 Ne Device Hunber	twork Control	About address	Hide LC	G Num O selection O Search	Serial port co Port COM7 Data/check/sto	nfiguration V Baud 960 P 8 V M) v Oj	pen Serial	- LDG	^
IU demo basic set	tings advance	ed settings			Relie	Sh all Auto	nerresn Cy	STE 2 SUUMS		
0 0	0 0	0 (0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0	0 0			
DI-1 DI-2	DI-3 DI-	-4 DI-5	DI-6 DI-7	DI-8 DI-9	DI-10 DI-11	DI-12 DI-13	DI-14 DI-1	5 DI-16		
DO										
(1) All off	or	or 01					007 OF			
AI Refresh										
Current value : Engineering Amount:	0.00mA 0 AI-1	0.00mA 0 AI-2	0.00mA 0 AI-3	0.00mA 0 AI-4	0.00mA 0 AI-5	0.00mA 0 AI-6	0.00mA 0 AI-7	0.00mA 0 AI-8		
A0 A0-1	A0-2		o-3	A0-4	10-5	10-6 A	0-7	AO-8	Clear	Check send Send

Figure 6-1-2 The software installation successfully opens the interface

6.2 Introduction to software features

6.2.1 IO demo interface



Figure 6-2-1 Software IO Demo Interface

(1) The device window

Displays the current connection device information (serial number, device model, device address, firmware version).

中文	Network Control	About	Hide LO	DG	
ice	11	11	toristerine der	-	
Number	model	address	version	אניא	
1	MA01-AXCX4040	2	V1.3	selection	
				Seerch	

Figure 6-2-2 Device Window Interface

(2) Serial parameter window

Displays serial parameter information (port, baud rate, data bit, check bit, stop bit, etc.) and opens serial port.



Figure 6-2-3 Serial Parameter Window Interface

(3) The log window

Displays the device configuration, the operation log information during use (send, return data instructions).

LOG	
02 03 05 78 00 04 C4 EF - <r [14:57:42:521]<="" th=""><th>^</th></r>	^
02 03 08 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 9A 93	
->T [14:57:42:890]	
02 03 05 DC 00 04 85 0C − <r [14:57:42:990]<="" td=""><td></td></r>	
02 03 08 03 E8 07 D0 0B B8 0F A0 F5 64	
->T [14:57:43:370] 02 01 00 64 00 04 7C 25	
- <r [14:57:43:460]<br="">02 01 01 00 51 CC</r>	
->T [14:57:43:530]	
- <r [14:57:43:630]<="" td=""><td></td></r>	
02 03 08 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 9A 93	
−>T [14:59:21:365] 02 02 00 00 00 04 79 FA	
- <r [14:59:21:465]<br="">02 02 01 02 20 0D</r>	

Figure 6-2-4 Log Window Interface

(4) Switch input DI(this feature is limited to DI-enabled devices). Displays the status of the digital input DI port.

IO demo	basic set	tings ad	lvanced so	ettings			
0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
DI-1	DI-2	DI-3	DI-4	DI-5	DI-6	DI-7	DI-8



(5) Switch output DO

Displays the status of the DO port of the switch output, and the graphical settings switch output of the DO port is on and off.



Figure 6-2-5 Switch Output DO interface

(6) Analog input AI(this feature is limited to AI-enabled devices).

Displays the status of the analog input AI port (current, engineering volume), indicated by a graphical pin.



Figure 6-2-6 Simulates input AI interface

(7) Refresh the settings

Supports manual refresh, automatic refresh status. The auto-refresh state can customize the refresh cycle, which is a multiple of 500ms.



Figure 6-2-7 Refresh the settings interface

6.2.2 Basic setup interface



Figure 6-2-8 Basic setup interface

(1)Count demo

Displays DI count information, zeroing settings. This feature is limited to DI-enabled devices

Counting	demo
----------	------

Function	DI-1	DI-2	DI-3	DI-4
Counting	0	0	0	0
Clear now	Clear	Clear	Clear	Clear

Figure 6-2-9 Count Demo Interface

(2) DI-related

Set up the DI function. Set the filter parameters(1to16),trigger(rising, falling, level), and zeroing (automatic, manual). This feature is limited to DI-enabled devices

DI related					
filter set 16 \sim					
Function	DI-1				
Trigger method	Rising edge 🔹				
Clearing method	Rising edge Falling edge Level				
<					

Figure 6-2-10 "DI-related" interface

(3) DO-related

Set the DO function, set the operating mode (level mode, pulse mode, follow mode), set the pulse width (pulse mode only), power up the DO state (on, off), follow the source (follow the setting DIx).

Note: Multiple switch output DO ends can be set to follow one DI input, not one switch output DO side to follow multiple DI inputs. Follow mode is limited to DI-enabled devices

				Function	DO-1		D0-2	
				Operating mode	Level mode	-	Level mode	-
Function	D0-1			Pulse Width	1000		2000	
Operating mode	Level mode	-	Le	DO status	Close	-	Close	-
Pulse Width	Level mode			Follow source	DI-1	-	DI-1	-
DO status	Pulse mode			<			DI-1	
DOStatas	Follow mode						DI-2	
Follow source	DI-1						DI-3	
							DI-4	

Figure 6-2-11 "DO-related" interface

6.2.3 Advanced Settings Interface

Device	TO demo basic settings Device settings Device nume 1234567890	advanced settings 1234 Offset addr [18 Read	Save Restart Factory
Device	serial port settings Baud 9600 ~ Ethernet settings	Data bit 8	Check bit None 🗸 Stop bit 1	Read Save
serial port	MAC address	IP	ModbusTCP port	Subnet mask
settings	Gateway	DHCP	ServerIP/domain	Server port
5000011185	DNS server	Mode	V Active Upload	Read Save Clear
	1			

Figure 6-2-12 Advanced Settings Interface

(1)Device settings

Advanced setup interface, support for device name settings, offset address (software address), read parameters, turn on write protection, turn off write protection, restart modules, restore factory settings.

evice name 123456/89U1234 Offset addr 2 Read Save Restart	Factory
---	---------



(2)Device serial settings

Supports setting Baud Rate(1200,2400, 4800,9600,19200,38400,57600,115200)by default 115200.



Figure 6-2-14 Baud Rate Settings Interface

Supports setting check bits, which can be set (none, parity, parity), and no checks by default.



Figure 6-2-15 Check Bit Settings interface

6.3 Device status query

The configuration software supports device status queries, and once the device is connected, the device status can be queried through the Refresh All Data menu.

Example: The configuration software is connected to 2 devices, try to query select one of the devices, click on the "Refresh all data" menu, complete the device status query.

(1)IO demo interface



Figure 6-3-1 Device Status Query(IO Demo Interface).

(2)Basic setup interface

→ 中文	Network Contro	ol Abo	but	Hide LC	G									
rice Nunber 1	model MAO1-AXCX4040	addre: 2	55	version V1.3	Num sele	1 otion 1	Se Po	erial port cond	Ei gur	ation Baud 9600		Close	Serial	LOG 02 03 07 E8 00 01 05 79
demo basic ounting demo	settings advan	ed setting:	5		S	earch	na	ata/check/stop	8	Mone	9	R	efresh	02 05 06 0F 00 04 76 5C
Function	DI-1	DI-	2	DI-3		DI-4		DI-6	-	DI-6		DI-7	D	-→T [14:57:41:981]
Counting	0	0		0		0		0		0		0		$ = \frac{1}{\sqrt{R}} \begin{bmatrix} 14:57:42:081 \end{bmatrix} $
Clear now	Clear	Clea	ar 🛛	Clear		Clear	T	Clear	Í	Clear	C	lear	Cl	e 02 03 06 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 9A 93
I related ilter set 16 Function Trigger meth Clearing met	DI-1 Nod Rising edge	 Rising autor 	DI−2 gedge • natic •	DI-3 Rising ed automati	ge ▼ c ▼	DI-4 Rising edge automatic	•	DI-5 Rizing edge sutomatic	•	BI-6 Rising edge • sutomatic •	ead Ri:	DI-7 sing edge atomatic	Save • Risi • aut	
C related							3				ead		> Save	→1 [14,57,43,570] 0 0 10 0 64 00 04 7C 25 →CR [14:57,43,460] 0 2 0 1 0 1 00 51 CC →T [14:57,43,530] 0 2 05 06 40 00 04 45 66 →CR [14:57,43,630]
Functio	on DO	-1	DC)-2		DO-3		D0-4		D0-5	1000	D0-	6	02 03 08 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 9A 93
Operating r	node Level r	node •	Level m	node •	Leve	node ·		Level mode	•	Level mode	•	Level mo	de '	
Pulse Wid	ath 10	00	20	00		3000	-	4000		50		50	-	
DO stati	us Clo	se •	Clos	e •	C	iose ·	3	Close	•	Close	•	Close		
C all arrest			131-			UI-1	282	UI-1	•	UI-1		UI-1		

Figure 6-3-2 Device Status Query (Basic Settings Interface).

(3)Advanced settings interface

10 亿佰符IO模块配置则试工具 V1.3	- 🗆 🗙
Image: Seriel pert configuration	106
June er nosal accrets vertion junt i 1 MADI-AACK4540 2 VI.3 salection 1 Search Data/check/stop Bund Mone 1	02:05:00:00:FF:00:8C:08 →CR:[14:54:19:310] 02:05:00:00:FF:00:8C:09 →T [14:56:48:171] 02:03:07:E0:00 A:4 B0
IO dano basic settings advanced settings Derice settings Derice name [12345678901234] Offset addr 2 Read Save Restart Factory	
serial port settings Bund	~K [14:56:48:941] D2 03 02 00 02 7D 85
Ethernet settings NGC address IF NodbusTCF port Subnet mask	
Gateway DDCP V ServerIP/domin Server port DBS server Mode V Active Upload Read Server (Clear)	
	v
	Clear Check send Send

Figure 6-3-3 Device Status Query (Advanced Settings Interface).

6.4 Device status control

Device status control, device support for Modbus standard command control. Configuration software graphical control is also supported.

Example: Control the device and turn on the DO-1 output port.

Method 1:Software graphical operation, click on the menu button control.



Figure 6-4-1 Software Graphic Operation

Method 2:Enter instruction control.

Device address:1 Function: Turn on the DO-1 output Send:01 05 00 00 FF 00 8C 3A (with CRC check bit). Return:01 05 00 00 FF 00 8C 3A (with CRC check bit).

7.Modbus uses

7.1 Register List

Register address	Num ber	The contents of the register	state	The range of data	The applicable function code
(00000)0x0000	4	Do status	RW	0x00-0xFF, write changes the current DO state, and read gets the current DO state.	0x01、0x05、0x0F
(00100)0x0064	4	The status of the DO when it is powered on	RW	0x00-0xFF, set the power-on state of the DO, write, and the next time you restart, the state of the DO is the state of the setting.	0x01、0x05、0x0F
(10000)0x0000	4	BY 值	RW	0x00-0xFF, which represents the current level signal for DI.	0x02
(41204)0x04B4	4	Di count value	RW	0x0001-0x0008, writes to represent the initial value of the set count, and read out the value that has been read out.	0x03、0x06、0x10
(41400)0x0578	4	DO mode of operation	RW	0x0000-0x0002, 0x0000 level mode (default mode), 0x0001 pulse mode, 0x0002 follow mode.	0x03、0x06、0x10
(41500)0x05DC	4	DO pulse width	RW	0x32-0xFFF (50-65535), duration of pulse, in ms.	0x03、0x06、0x10
(41318)0x0526	4	Di counting method	RW	0x0000-0x0002, 0x0000 represents the rising edge count, 0x0001 the falling edge count, 0x0002 the level count.	0x03、0x06、0x10
(41304)0x0518	4	How the DI count value is zeroed	RW	0x0000-0x0001, 0x0000 automatic zeroing and manual zeroing 0x0001.	0x03、0x06、0x10
(41311)0x051F	4	Set the zeroing method	RW	0x0001-0x00FF。	0x03、0x06、0x10
(41600)0x0640	4	Set the DO to follow the channel	RW	0x0001-0x0008, 0x0001 represents the first input.	0x03、0x06、0x10
(42000)0x07D0	7	Module model	R	See model definition table.	0x03
(42012)0x07DC	2	The firmware version	R	Firmware version number.	0x03
(42014)0x07DE	10	The name of the module	RW	The name is up to 20 bytes long, including ""	0x03、0x06、0x10
(42027)0X07E8	1	Module Software Address	RW	0x01-0xE0。	0x03、0x06、0x10
(42025)0X07E9	1	Restore the default parameters	RW	Write 5BB5 and the set parameters revert to the default parameters.	0x03、0x06、0x10
(42026)0x07EA	1	The device restarts	RW	Write 5BB5 and the device restarts immediately	0x03、0x06、0x10
(42100)0x0834	1	Baud rate code	RW	The default is 0x0003, or 9600. 0x0000, i.e. 1200; 0x0001, or 2400; 0x0002, or 4800;	0x03、0x06、0x10

Table 7-1-1 Register List



				0x0003, or 9600;	
				0x0004, i.e. 19200;	
				0x0005, or 38400;	
				0x0006, or 57600;	
				0x0007, or 115200;	
				The default value is 0x0000,	
				which is no check.	
(42102)0x0836	1	The way to check	RW	0x0000, i.e. no checks;	0x03、0x06、0x10
				0x0001, i.e. odd check;	
				0x0002, i.e. parity;	

7.2 List of AI-related registers

Register address	Num ber	The contents of the register	state	The range of data	The applicable function code
(30000)0x0000	4	The original value of the AI	R	0-4095	0x04
(30100)0x0064	4	AI engineering value	R	0-25000	0x04
(40400)0x0190	4	AI High Point Calibration value	RW	0-4095	0x03、0x06、0x10
(40600)0x0258	4	AI Low Calibration Value	RW	0-4095	0x03、0x06、0x10
(41200)0x04B0	1	All AI channel filter parameters	RW	1-16	0x03、0x06、0x10
(41202)0x04B2	1	All AI channel sampling ranges	RW	0x0000-0x0001, 0x0000 for 0-20mA and 0x0001 for 4-20mA.	0x03、0x06、0x10

Table 7-2-1 List of AI-related registers

7.3 Instruction format (partial).

7.3.1 Read DO output coil status

Use the 01 function code to read the output coil status, for example, read the two output coil states

20	01	00 00	00 02	XX XX
Device Modbus address	Function code: Read output coil status	Register start address	The number of output coils read	CRC check code

When the above command is sent to the device via the 485 bus, the device returns the following values:

20	01	01	02	XX XX
Device Modbus	The function code	The number of bytes	The status data	CDC abaalt aada
address		of the data	returned	

The status data returned above 02 indicates that the output DO2 on .

7.3.2 Read Hold Register

Use the 03 function code to read one or more register values, for example, read DO1 operating mode.

20	03	05 78	00 01	XX XX	
Device Modbus	The function code	Decision start address	The number of registers	CRC check code	
address	The function code	Register start address	read		

When the above command is sent to the device via the 485 bus, the device returns the following values:

20	02	02	00 00	XX XX
Device Modbus	The function and	The number of bytes	The data raturned	CRC check code
address	The function code	of the data	The data returned	

The above 00 00 indicates that DO1 is level mode.

7.3.3 Write a single hold register

Write a single hold register using the 06 function code, for example, set the operating mode of DO1 to pulse mode

20	06	05 78	00 01	XX XX
Device Modbus	The function	Degister address	Write the value	CRC check code
address	code	Register address	while the value	

When the above command is sent to the device via the 485 bus, the device returns the following values:

20	06	05 78	00 01	XX XX
Device Modbus	The function	Pagister address	Write the volue	CRC check code
address	code	Register address	write the value	CKC check code

If the modification is successful, the 0x0578 register data is 0x0001.

7.3.4 Write multiple hold registers

Write multiple hold register commands using 10 function codes, for example, set the do1-DO4 operating mode at the sametime.

20	10	05 78	00 04	08	0001 0002 0003 0004	XX XX
Device Modbus address	The function code	Register start address	The number of registers	The number of bytes written to the data	The data written	CRC check code

When the above command is sent to the device via the 485 bus, the device returns the following values:

Chengdu Ebyte Electronic Technology Co.,Ltd.

20	10	0578	00 04	XX XX
Device Modbus	The function	Pagistar address	The number of registers	CPC check code
address	code	Register address	The number of registers	CKC check code

If the modification is successful, the values of the four consecutive registers with 0x 0578 as the starting address are 0 x0001, 0x0002, 0x0003, 0x0000.

7.3.5 Write a single DO coil status

Use the 06 command to write a single command, for example, to set DO1 to pulse mode

20	05	00 00	FF 00	XX XX
Device Modbus	The function	Degister address	Write the value	CPC sheek oode
address	code	Register address	Coil action: On	

When the above command is sent to the device via the 485 bus, the device returns the following values:

20	05	00 00	FF 00	XX XX
Device Modbus	The function	Degister address	Write the volue	CRC check code
address	code	Register address	while the value	CKC check code

DO1 coil on.

7.3.6 Write multiple DO coil states

Use the 06 function code to write a single command, for example, set do1 to pulse mode

20	0F	00 00	00 04	01	06	XX XX
Device Modbus address	The function code	The starting address	The number of coils	The number of bytes of the data	Control coil data (bit operation)	CRC check code

When the above command is sent to the device via the 485 bus, the device returns the following values:

20	0F	00 00	0004	XX XX
Device Modbus	The function	Decistor address	The number of soils	CRC check code
address	code	Register address	The number of cons	CKC check code

DO2, DO3 coil on.

7. 3. 7 Read the input register

For example, the original value of the four AI channels is captured, and the original value of the four AI channels is read using the 0 4 function code.

(((;))) EBYTE Chengdu Ebyte Electronic Technology Co.,Ltd.

【4AI + 2DO】 MA01 -XACX0420 User Manual

20	04	00 00	00 04	XX XX
Device Modbus	Dood the command	The starting	The number of	CRC check code
address	Read the command	address	AI channels is 4	

When the above command is sent to the device via the 485 bus, the device returns the following values:

20	04	08	00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	XX XX
Device Modbus address	The function code	The number of bytes of data	4 AI channel raw value data, Each 2 bytes of data represents an AI channel data, where the original values for each channel are0, 0,0,0	CRC check code

The final interpretation is owned by Chengdu Ebyte Electronic Technology Co.,Ltd.

Revised history

version	The revision date	Revised description	Maintainer
1.0	2021-08-30	The initial version	LC
1.1	2022-06-27	Content revision	XXN
1.2	2023-3-13	Content revision	LT

About us

Technical support: support@cdebyte.com

Documents and RF Setting download link: https://www.cdebyte.com

Thank you for using Ebyte products! Please contact us with any questions or suggestions: info@cdebyte.com

Phone: +86 028-61399028

Web: https://www.cdebyte.com

Address: B5 Mould Park, 199# Xiqu Ave, High-tech District, Sichuan, China

